
  Page 1  
  

MUIR BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 1 
Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting held on 2 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 3 
 4 

 5 
OFFICIAL MINUTES ONLY UPON APPROVAL 6 

 7 
Prior to approval of these minutes by the Board of Directors in a public meeting, these minutes are draft 8 
only and subject to change.  Upon approval by the Board, these minutes become the Official Minutes of 9 
the meeting. 10 
 11 
Bill Hansell administered the oath of office to newly elected directors Gary Friedman, Lynda Gross and 12 
Victoria Hamilton-Rivers. 13 
 14 
Item 1 Call to Order: 15 
 16 
Paul Jeschke called the meeting of the Muir Beach Community Services District Board of Directors to 17 
order at approximately 7:11 PM. 18 
 19 
Directors present:  Paul Jeschke, Peter Lambert, Gary Friedman 20 
    Victoria Hamilton-Rivers, Lynda Gross 21 
 22 
Directors absent:   23 
 24 
Staff present:   Bill Hansell, District Manager 25 
    Sharry Mullin, Meeting Secretary 26 
 27 
Item 2 Agenda: 28 
 29 

MOTION: To adopt the agenda as submitted.   30 
Moved:  Lambert, seconded by Gross  31 
Vote:  AYES:  Unanimous 32 

 33 
Item 3 Consent Calendar: 34 
 35 

A. Draft Minutes from the Regular Meeting of November 18, 2015, as attached. 36 
B. Financial Report dated 11/30/15, as attached. 37 

 38 
The Board briefly discussed the Consent Calendar.  Lynda requested transaction detail by year for Road 39 
Improvements.  The floor was then opened to audience discussion. 40 
 41 

MOTION: To approve Items A and B above.  42 
Moved:  Hamilton-Rivers, seconded by Gross 43 
Vote:  AYES:  Jeschke, Hamilton-Rivers, Gross, Friedman 44 

Abstained:  Lambert 45 
 46 

Item 4 District Manager’s Report: 47 
 48 

A. Review of District Manager activities:  Measure A funds have been applied for.  Meetings with 49 
Marin LAFCO and NPS are to be scheduled.  Bill received notice that the letter of counter-offer 50 
sent to TNC had been received.  A meeting with Alex Tolkach has been scheduled for the end of 51 
January.  Lynda and Gary offered to accompany Bill to the meeting. 52 

 53 
 54 



  Page 2  
  

B. Update on stonework at Community Center:  The stonework is underway.  A generous 1 
contribution, which will fund that work, has been received.  Bill is taking steps to make sure that 2 
the project is being tracked correctly. 3 

 4 
C. Water management update:  There was nothing out of the ordinary to report regarding water 5 

management. 6 
 7 

D. Update on options for wood/metal salvage from upper water tank:  The redwood salvaged from 8 
removal of the upper water tank has been wrapped.  Bill has received one offer for it, but would 9 
like to wait for more offers before a decision is made.  Lynda iterated that she wanted the wood 10 
offered to the community first.  Bill also believes that it’s significantly valuable to the community.  11 
He will report back to the Board by the next meeting. 12 

 13 
E. County Counsel changes:  The assigned counsel for 2016 is Priya Brandes and the backup 14 

counsel is Jenna Brady.  One resident asked that County Counsel opinions be in writing, so their 15 
meaning is clear. 16 

 17 
F. Review of introductory meetings with the new Directors:  Bill has communicated with each new 18 

director to talk about long and short term goals.  The Brown Act will be discussed. 19 
 20 

G. Review of tree work guidelines:  There is a question regarding rules and regulations when 21 
residents do work on trees that are on CSD property.  A discussion will be had at a future time. 22 
 23 

Item 5 Budget Hearing for FY 2015/2016: 24 
 25 
The required public notice was placed.  California law requires that a budget be passed by September 1.  26 
The CSD is in violation of that law.  Bill thinks it better to adopt and amend this budget now in order to be 27 
in compliance with the law.  He will start the 2016/17 budget process in March of 2016. 28 
 29 
After Board discussion followed by public discussion, the following motion was made: 30 
 31 

MOTION: To approve the 2015/16 budget as presented. 32 
Moved:  Lambert, seconded by Hamilton-Rivers 33 
Vote:  AYES:  Lambert, Jeschke, Hamilton-Rivers, Gross 34 
  Abstained:  Friedman 35 

 36 
Item 6 Discussion of Financial Planning Strategies and Reporting: 37 
 38 
Some members of the Board would like to have a special meeting in order to discuss the Budget line item 39 
by line item. 40 
 41 
Bill would like to solicit auditors soon. 42 
 43 
Item 7     Adoption of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order: 44 
 45 
Bill explained that Robert’s Rules are old fashioned and extensive.  He’s aware that other community 46 
services districts have adopted Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  He would be happy to push this back in 47 
order to give the Board a chance to review them. 48 
 49 
Several Board members expressed an interest in a special meeting.  Lambert made a motion to adopt 50 
Rosenberg’s Rules, but the motion was not seconded.   51 
 52 
Item 8 Review of the Brown Act: 53 
 54 
Bill presented an overview of the Brown Act, which dictates that no District business be conducted 55 
outside of agendized, public meetings.  Bill has posted three documents on the CSD website regarding 56 



  Page 3  
  

the Brown Act.  There are very few allowances for closed sessions - only for legal topics with 1 
confidentiality issues or for personnel issues.  The point is to avoid serialized meetings. 2 
 3 
Participation extends to a Board member posting on Next Door and another Board member reading the 4 
post.  County Counsel has advised that Board members not communicate on social media.  The same 5 
holds true for social events.  Bill is going to arrange for every Board member to take an online course on 6 
the Brown Act. 7 
 8 
Item 9 Update of Sunset Way Improvement Project: 9 
 10 
Bill does not yet have all of the information to report. 11 
 12 
Steve Wynn reported that he and Linda Lotriet have been working on a design for the turnarounds at the 13 
end of Sunset Way and the top of Cove Lane and they’re close to being finished.  The design for the top 14 
of Cove Lane involves using two existing driveways and altering them a bit.  Steve has verbal 15 
confirmation from the Fire Marshal that if Steve is satisfied with the design, he will okay it.  Steve hopes to 16 
have plans ready by the time of the next meeting so the community can look them over.  He would like to 17 
use an engineer other than the one that has been used for the Sunset Way project. 18 
 19 
There was a lengthy discussion.  Requests included:  informing the community where the plans will be for 20 
those who cannot attend the meeting, creating a visual timeline for the project itself, setting a date for 21 
ending discussion on the project, centralizing project information with the District Manager. 22 
 23 
Item 10 Approval of Funds for Temporary Road Patching at Sunset Way: 24 
  25 
Harvey walked Sunset Way with Pimentel to assess possible repairs.  Cost to fix the potholes and rough 26 
areas is estimated at $8,000.  Discussion revolved around spending money on repairing a road that will 27 
be torn up when the Sunset Way project gets underway.  Since there is money in the budget for this kind 28 
of repair, no action was taken.  The Board was inclined to pass on the repair at this time. 29 
 30 
Don Cohon asked to go on record that he requests one particular speed bump on Sunset Way be 31 
repaired.  He has someone living in his home that has a herniated disk.  Every time that person travels in 32 
a vehicle over the speed bump, it causes them pain. 33 
 34 
Item 11 Discussion of “Community Skills” Inventory: 35 
 36 
This item was pushed back to another agenda. 37 
 38 
Item 12 Fire Department: 39 
 40 
Chief Steve Wynn reported. 41 
 42 
He’s waiting on approval for a temporary shelter to protect squad 660.  The electrical must be done by a 43 
licensed electrician, which will be a minor expense. 44 
 45 
He is looking to get a 2,000 gallon water tender with an aluminum tank donated.  He’d like to encourage 46 
the build-out of the current fire barn, which is where the water tender would go.  This could benefit the 47 
NPS as well as the CSD. 48 
  49 
Drawings for the new firehouse are almost done.  There is room at the site for three bays.  Once the 50 
drawings are complete and the neighboring property owners are satisfied, the next steps can be taken. 51 
 52 
Sandbags will be available to the community should there be flooding this winter. 53 
 54 
Steve would like to install reflective posts at Highway One and Sunset Way.  There have been two 55 
instances of drivers cutting too close to the edge of the road and getting stuck. 56 



  Page 4  
  

 1 
Steve estimates a cost of $1,300 for a firebox at the bottom of Cove Lane, which will include hoses, 2 
straps and nozzles. 3 
 4 
There was a discussion about a tree at 8 Seacape that is starting to stress wires that are passing through 5 
its branches.  He’s unsure if the tree is on CSD property or County land.  He’ll call the County to find out. 6 
 7 
Steve, Harvey and Chris cleared the various pipes and drains on Sunset Way. 8 
 9 
In an emergency, phone (415) 488-4321 which calls the emergency line at the dispatch for the VFD.  A 10 
non-emergency should be phoned in to Woodacre at (415) 499-6717.  If you request a public assist, they 11 
will tone out just the MBVFD. 12 
 13 
The food and toy drive for Child Protective Services is wrapping up. 14 
 15 
Fire restrictions on Little Beach is not a CSD issue, as the property is either private or County. 16 
 17 
Item 13 CA Rural Water Association: 18 
 19 
The California Rural Water Association requested MBCSD to support their attempt to change from a 20 
501(c)6 organization to a 501(c)3.  Although the deadline to send a support letter has passed, the 21 
following motion was made: 22 
 23 

MOTION: To send a letter to CRWA in support of their change from a 501(c)6 24 
organization to a 501(c)3 organization. 25 

Moved:  Gross, seconded by Lambert 26 
Vote:  AYES:  Unanimous 27 

 28 
Item 14 Marin LAFCO: 29 
 30 
Marin LAFCO, in their Countywide Municipal Service Review, made characterizations about MBCSD’s 31 
water usage that are inaccurate.  Other districts have made corrections to findings on their usage.  Bill 32 
thinks it’s important to respond to the findings and the Board agreed. 33 
  34 
Item 15 Marin County Grand Jury Report on Special District Websites: 35 
 36 
Bill received a Web Transparency Checklist for Special Districts from the Marin County Grand Jury.  The 37 
CSD was given a report card on its website and there were some deficiencies noted.  Looking forward, 38 
Bill wants to make sure the CSD is posting everything it should on its site. 39 
 40 
Item 16 Policy for Future Renovations to the Community Center: 41 
 42 
Bill has been approached by residents with ideas for renovations at the Community Center.  He thinks it 43 
important that the Board have a process for considering these ideas.   44 
 45 
Item 17 Selection of Board Meeting Dates for 2016: 46 
 47 
The bylaws state that meetings will occur on the fourth Thursday of the month.  The date for the next 48 
meeting is set for Thursday, January 28, 2016. 49 
 50 
Item 18 Public Open Time 51 
 52 
Mike Moore expressed concern that with Leighton Hills and Steve Shaffer no longer working for the CSD 53 
and Supervisor Steve Kinsey retiring, Kinsey’s prior verbal promise to purchase the CSD owned lot on 54 
Highway One to return it to wetlands, might not occur.  The lot was purchased by the CSD with Marin 55 



  Page 5  
  

Community Foundation funds a few years ago as a location for a new fire barn.  The lot proved unsuitable 1 
for a fire barn. 2 
 3 
Item 19 Items Removed from Consent Calendar: 4 
 5 
No items were removed from the Consent Calendar. 6 
 7 
Item 20 Recognitions and Board Member Items of Interest: 8 
 9 
Bill thanked Laurie Piel, Suzanne Miller, and Joy Perrin as well as the community’s engagement at the 10 
Holiday Fair.  Lynda added a thank you to Susan Miller for the decorations and Laurie Piel for her efforts. 11 
 12 
Item 21 Request for Future Meeting Agenda Items: 13 
 14 
There were no requests for future meeting agenda items. 15 
 16 
Item 22 Adjournment: 17 
 18 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:26 PM. 19 


